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his creditors in proportion to the amount of their respective claims."
In the case of Beall v. Cowan, 21 C. C. A. 267, 75 Fed. 139, the cir-
cuit court of appeals for this circuit, following the decisions of the
supreme court of the state of Oregon, held, in effect, that the court
would regard the form of the instrument, and, if it be not in form
an assignment, it is not within the act quoted. The doctrine of
this decision, and of the decisions of the supreme court upon which
it is founded, is that the statute "was not intended to prevent an
insolvent debtor from preferring one creditor to another, and was
not intended to apply to any and all instruments or means by which
an insolvent might divest himself of his property, and thereby pay
or secure certain creditors to the exclusion of others, but ·was in-
tended to apply to the subject-matter of the statute, which was
the voluntary distribution of an insolvent's estate through an as-
signee, and substantially in the method contemplated in the stat-
ute,--a proceeding by which the insolvent surrendered his estate
to another for the benefit of his creditors, and under which the
assignee distributed the estate, and in which the transfer became
effective without the assent of the creditors, and the insolvent lost
all dominion over his property." Following these decisions, I
must hold that the mortgage in this case is not within the statutory
definition of a general assignment. It is therefore ordered that
the bill of complaint herein be dismissed.

COWEN et al. v. ADAMS et aL

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. February 8, 1897.)
No. 867.

1. SUIT UNDER WILL-NECESSARY PARTIES-LEGATEES.
One M. made his will, in 1880, leaving his estate to be equally divided among

his four children and a grandson, the son of a deceased child. The will also
referred to advances made by the testator to his children, and charged to them
on his books, and declared that the provision made by the will was to be in
addition to such advancetl, and that, in the settlement of his estate, such
advances already made, and any that should be afterwards made, should not
be treated as advancements, but as gifts, not in any manner to be accounted
for by the children or grandson. Some time after the making of this will,
W., one of M.'s sons, met with financial disaster, and became very deeply in-
volved. M. then directed J., another son, to do what was necessary to relieve
W., and thereafter, through J., advanced very large sums to pay W.'s debts,
taking W.'s notes therefor, and taking assignments of coUateral from some
of W.'s creditors. Shortly before the death of M., and when it was expected,
the persons who afterwards became administrators with the will annexed took
from W. a paper authorizing the application of his share of his father's estate
to these notes. This paper W. afterwards revoked, and then revoked the
revocation, and afterwards gave the administrators a receipt for nearly the
whole amount of his share of the estate by its application to the payment
of the notes, and thereafter he received the remaining collaterals, taken by
his father when he paid W.'s debts, and which had not been realized on by
him. In the meantime, in a suit instituted against W. by his wife, a decree
had been entered, pursuant to which he conveyed to trustees, for the benefit
of his family, all his interest in his father's estate. The trustees under this
deed brought suit against the administrators executing M.'s will to set aside
the receipt given to them by W., to establish W,'s right to his interest in his
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father's estate, and for an accounting thereof. Held, that the legatees under
M.'s will were not necessary parties to the suit, either as it was thereby
80ught to set aside W.'s receipt or as it was sought to establish W.'s interest
in the estate notwithstanding the advances to him..

Ill. CO:>fSl'KUCTIO:>f OF WILL-ADVA:>fCES.
Held, further, that the dominating purpooe of M.'s will was that the property

he should leave at his death should be equally divided among his children and
grandchild, irrespective of previous advances, and, while a debt from a legatee
might be created which would be independent of the absolution accorded by
the will, to establish the creation of such a debt would require clear proof of
the existence of a distinct purpose on the part of the testator himself, at the
time of the transaction, to put such debt outside the pale of the forgiveness
written in the will, and that the advances made to W., for which his notes
were given, though debts duritlg M.'s life, were not shown by the evidence
to be outside the provisions of the will, and they were extinguished on M.'s
death.

8. ESTOPPEL-LEGATEP,'S RECEIPT.
Held, further, that the receipt of the collarerals, to which he became entitled

upon the extinguishment of his debt, did not estop W. to dispute the receipt
given to the administrators, and that, in view of the position of trust in which
the administrators stood towards W., the receipt procured by them from him,
by which, without legal obligation to do so, he surrendered the greater part
of his share of the estate, would not be permitted to stand in the way of thl'
enforcement of his rights in the estate of M.

Appeal from the Circuit Court of the United States for the Dis-
trict of Kentucky.
This is a suit in equity brought in the circuit court for the district of Kentucky,

by the above-named Benjamin R. Cowen, Evan F. Williams, and A. S. Fra-
zer, appellants, as trustees under a deed of trust executed by William Means
on the 26th day of December, 1891, and which purported to convey all the
interest of the said William Means as devisee under the will of his father,
Thomas W. Means, in trust for the purposes recited in a certain decree of the
court of common pleas of Greene county, Ohio, against the defendants 'l'homail M.
Adams and E. C. Means, as administrators with the will annexed of the estate of
Thomas W. Means, and John Means, who had been connected with the transac-
tions out of which the controversy grows. As the appeal is not prosecuted as
against John Means, it is not necessary here to state the particular relationship
of John Means to the subject-matter of the suit in respect to his liability to
account. The object of the suit is to set aside a certain instrument of settlement
and receipt given by William Means to the above-named administrators on the
16th day of October, 1890, and for a declaration establishing the right of the said
trust€eS to recover, in virtue of the interest of 'Villiam Means as legatee, a one-
fifth interest of the estate of the said Thomas ·W. Means. and for an accounting
and payment to them of the amount of the legacy bequeathed to the said William
Means.
In order to a proper understanding of the grounds of the decision of this court,

it is necessary to give a hrief account of so much of the history of the prior events
and of the transactions involved in the controversy as are deemed by the cO'Urt
material, supplemented, however, by some further incidental facts which are stated
in the opinion. 'l'homas ""V. Means was on the 20th day of July, 1880, and for
many years prior thereto had been. a resident of Hanging Rock, in the state of
Ohio, and had reached the age of 77 years. He had been an active and capable
man, engaged in many kinds of business enterprises, and had accumulated a large
properly, amounting to $700,000 or $800,000. He had had five children,-John,
'Villiam, Mary, Margaret, and Sarah,-the latter of whom had married one Cu!-
bettson. Previous to the date just mentioned, Mrs. Culbertson had died, leaving
her son, Thomas M. Culbertson, as her only heir. These five persons, the four
children and the grandson, were all living at the date referred to. Prior to that
time he had been in the habit of assisting his children, and in that way had already
advaneed to them large snms of money. He had opened accounts with each of
them, in which he had charged them with the sums which he had furnished them,
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and given them credit .for various items to which he had conceived them entitled
for the purpo6e of keeping these accounts. He had assisted some of his children
in business, introducing them into various enterprises in which he was himself
concerned, and, when such enterprises had been disastrous or unprofitable, had
charged off the losses to himself, or furnished them with the means to balance up
their losses and take a fresh start; his purpose seeming.to have been, while he
Jived, to take upon himself such burdens, and help them along through their mis-
fortunes and discouragements. At one time, on December 9, 1873, he made a gift
to his children of $400,000, $80,000 to each. Previous to that time he had advanced
them, in all, more than $250,000. Without for the present going into further par-
ticulars of this kind, Thomas W. Means, on the said 20th day of July, 1880, made
and executed his last will, the fourth and fifth paragraphs of which are here given:
"(4) I give, devise, and bequeath all the residue and remainder of my estate,

personal, real, and mixed, wherever situated or located, of which I shall die pos-
sessed, to be equally divided among my four children, John Means, William Means,
Mary A. Adams, and Margaret A. Means, and my grandson, 'l'homas M. Culbert-
son (son and sole heir of my deceased daughter, Sarah Jane Culbertson), who
shall be living at the time of my decease, and the issue of any child now living,
and of said grandson, who may then have deceased, such issue taking the share
to which such child or grandson would be entitled if living. But said share given,
devised and bequeathed to sald grandson or his issue is to be held in trust as
hereinafter provided, and to be subject to the provisions hereinafter contained as
to said grandson's share.
"(5) I have made advan.ces to my said children which are charged to them,

respectively, on my books, and I may make further advances to them, respectively,
or to some of them, and to my said grandson, which may be charged on my books
to their respective accounts. I desire the equal provision herein made for said
children, and the provision for said grandson, to be a provision for them, respec-
tively, in addition to s'aid advances made and that may hereafter be made, and
that, in the division, distribution, and settlement of my said estate, said advances
made and that may hereafter be made be treated, not as advancements, but as
gifts, not in any manner to be accounted for by my said children and grandson,
or any of them."
After the making of this will the testator continued to make advances to his

children, and to keep regular accounts with them, as he had previously done. To
some of them he advanced very considerable sums, thus: To John Means he sup-
plied $20,685; William Means, $41,590; Mary A. Adams, $48,792; Margaret A.
Means, $55,568. These, with former advances, made up the sum of $100,000 to
each, exclusive of the $80,000 which, as above stated, he had given to each of
them. No advances appear to have been made to the grandson, Culbertson, the
reason probably being that he was a minor, and perhaps, also, because he had
other resources, on his paternal side. John Means, the oldest son, was himself a
prosperous man, and acquired a considerable fortune. William established him-
self in Cincinnati, and became a man of distinction there, being at one time may()r
of the city. He became preside'llt of the Metro.politan National Bank, one of the
leading financial institutions of the city. He acquired, and for many years main-
tained, the reputation of being a sound and oapable business man. But the Met-
ropolitan National ,Bank, which had for some time been laboring under heavy
embarrassments resulting from mismanagement and irregular dealings with its
tunds by the president, became so much involved that in February, 1888, it failed,
and directly went into the hands ot 'a receiver. By reason of his defalcations as
trustee for large properties, and of his irregular transactions in the affairs of the
bank, William Means became deeply involved, not only with respect to his char-
acter and standing as a man, but also in respect to his financial affairs. Proceed-
ings, both civil and criminal, were threatened, and were imminent. While he
had large and valuable collaterals, they could not be presently realized upon,
and, if they could have been realized in full, they would have been scarcely
sufficient to have met his liabilities. In this state of affairs be turned to his
father, who in 1884 had removed to Ashland, Ky., for help. The latter sum-
moned to his counsel John Means, his other son, and, after considering the
ways and means of helping William out, he sent John to Cincinnati to inves-
tigate affairs, and do what should be found needful to relieve 'William in his
embarrassed situation. 'fhe result was that, on its being asC€rtained that Wil-
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"Cincinnati, 0., Feb. 15, 1888.
"Due Thomas W. Means, or order, one hundred and twenty-five thousand nine

hundred and eleven and 74 /100 dollars, with interest from date.
"$125,911.74. William Means."

Ham's indebieilness to the bank amounted to the sum of $125,911.74, John Means
paid to the bank that sum, and took an assignment to Thomas W. Means of all
the collaterals which the bank held as security therefor, amounting, in all, at their
par value, to the sum of $182,350,-their estimated salable value being $146,000.
This was on February 15, 1888. On the following 22d day of February, at John's
request, ·William, Means executed his promissory note to Thomas W. Means for
the sum of $125,911.74, which John had paid to the bank. The following is a
copy of the note:

On the 11th day of March, 1888, John Means paid for William Means, to the
Bank of Ashland, $15,027, to take up two notes, given by William Means, for
which the Bank of Ashland held collaterals of the par value of $22,000, which
were transferred to Thomas W. Means, and William Means thereupon executed to
Thomas W. Means his promissory note therefor, as follows:

"Yellow Springs, 0., March 19, 1888.
"One day after date I promise to pay to the order of Thomas W. Means fifteen

thousand and twenty-seven dollars, for value received.
"15,027.00. William Means."

On August 20, 1888, Thomas W. Means took up a note, of William Means for
$5,000, and William Means sent to 'I.'homas W. Means his note for that amount,
with some accrued interest, as follows:

"New York, August 20, 1888.
"One day after date I promise to pay to the order of Thomas W. Means five

thousand forty-one and 67/100 dollars, for value received.
"$5,041.67. William Means."

Another transaction of like character was the payment by Thomas W. Means to
Hunt & Gurkey of the sum of $2,100, for which, on October 24, 1888, William
Means executed the following note:

"New York, October 24, 1888.
"One day after date I promise to pay to the order of 'l'homas W. Means twenty-

one hundred dollars, for value received.
"$2,100. William Means."
At this stage of affairs, there appears to have been some scheme concocted for

obtaining a nolle prosequi in reference to the criminal prosecution which had beE!'ll
commenced in the federal court on account of William Means' transactions in the
affairs of the bank, or of obtaining a pardon therefor. In furtherance of this
scheme, a note for $75,000 was made by William Means to Thomas W. Means, as
follows:

"New Haven, Conn., November 9,1888.
"One day after date I promise to pay to the order of Thomas W. Means seventy-

five thousand dollars, ,alue received, with interest from date.
"$75,000. William Means."
Appended to this note was the following:
"It is agreed, as part of the transaction by which I have procured a loan of

seventy-five thousand dollars upon the foregoing note, that the amount thereof,
Rnd all the interest, shall be paid from my interest as devisee or distributee of the
estate of Thomas W. Means.
"November 9, 1888. William Means."
Exactly how this $75,000 was intended to be used does not appear. It is not

shown that the money was actually employed, and the· scheme was either not pur-
sued or fell through. William Means was tried upon the indictments in the United
States district court at Cincinnati and acquitted. On the 22d day of November,
1888, another note WRS executed by 'Villiam Means to Thomas W. Means for the
sum of $45,000, as follows:
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"$45,000. New Haven, Conn., November 22, 1888.
"One day after date 1 promise to pay to the order of Thomas W. Means forty-

five thousand dollars, for value received, with interest from December 1, 1888.
"William Means."

Appended thereto was the following: '-
"The above is for money loaned to me by Thomas W. Means, on account of my

indebtedness as executor and trustee of the estate of A. Labrot, deceased, and it
is agreed, as part of the transaction by which 1 have procured a loan of forty-
five thousand dollars upon the foregoing note, that the amount thereof and all
interest shall be paid from my interest as devisee or distributee of the estate of
Thomas 1V. Means.
"November 22, 1888. William Means."
John Means was acting as the agent of his father in all of these transactions,

and used his father's funds in making the payments on account of which the notes
of William Means were given. Certain correspondence took place between John
Means and William Means, during the pendency of these transactions, in relation
to the giving of the above-mentioned notes by :William Means, and the form in
which they were put, to which the appellants refer as explanatory of the purpose
for which the notes, and the stipulations at the end of some of them, as above
shown, were made. correspondence is referred to in the opinion. Thomas
W. Means, already 85 years of age, had, in 1888, become almost blind, and that
affliction was increasing upon him. He was somewhat enfeebled in mind, and
quite infirm, and by June, 1889, had become quite imbecile. He had, up to that
time, at least, had a general understanding of what was being done for William,
and approved of it. He was deeply troubled at the calamities which httd befallen
his son, and felt a deE'p interest in relieving him. Soon after the above-mentioned
transactions in aid of William were begun, John Mcans, with the assent of his
father, opened up a separate account in his fathE'r's b<J.oks, in his own name as
debtor, with reference thereto, in which were recorded the substance of the mat-
ters of account involved, and in this separate account John Means continued the
record of the transactions.
Thomas 1V. Means died June 8, 1890, and on the 28th day of the July following

his death M. Adams and E. C. Means were appointed administrators with
the will annexed. These persons-Thomas M. Adams and E. C. ]Heans-had, a
sho'rt time previous to the testator's death, obtained from William Means the fol-
lowing instrument:

"Ashland, Ky., June '16, 1890.
"1 hereby direct the executors of the will of W. Means, or the personal

representatives hereafter to be a,ppointed, to charge against my distributable share
as heir at law of Thomas W. Means, or as devisee under his will, the llotes here-
tofore given by me to Thomas 'V. Means; and 1 do further hereby assign such
interest or share, or sufficient thereof to pay and discharge such notes.

"William Meana.
"Witness:

"S. B. E. Dranan.
"James l\'Ieans."

On the 17th, the day following, William Means delivered to the said Thomas M.
Adams and E. C. Means the following paper:

"Ashland, Ky., June 17, 1890.
"To Wltom It may Concern: This is to certify that my object in signing a cer-

tain paper, dated June 16, 1890, in which the executors of the estate of Thomas W.
Means are directed to charge up my obligations against my interest in said estate,
was done to insure the estate against loss through the purchase of such obligations,
no matter how obtained, and for no other pnrpose whatever.

"William Means."
On the 28th day of July (although it bears date the 29th), Thomas M. Adams

and Eo C. Means, under appointment as administrators, indorsed upon the back of
the paper above set forth, bearing date June 16, 1890, the following:
"This paper came into the possession of the undersigned June 16, 1890, and has

been held jointly since. And now, as administrators with will annexed of Thomas
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W. Means, deceased, and upon our appointment and qualification as such, we
note and indorse hereon its delivery and acceptance to and by us.

"E. C. Means,
"T. M. Adams.

"Administrators with Will Annexed of Estate of Thomas W. Means.
"July 29, 1890.
"Attest:

"John F. Hagar.
"W. P. Seaton."

Then, also, on the day of the appointment of the administrators, July 28th,
William Means delivered to the administrators an instrument of revocation, as
follows:
"To the Executors and Legal Representatives of the Estate of Thomas W. Means.
Deceased, and to E. C. Means and Thomas M. Adams, Individually:
"Gentlemen: Inasmuch as. by a certain paper, dated June 16, 1890, it is claimed

that I authorized certain notes to be deducted from or charged against my dis-
tributable share as heir at law of Thomas W. Means, and further assigned certain
interests to pay said notes: Now, this is to notify you, and all other persons
interested herein, that I hereby revoke and annul said paper writing, and all
consent and authority conferred by it, and declare said paper to be null and void
for any purpOse whatever. And you are notified not to deliver said paper to any
person, or make any use of the same; and I make this notification for the follow-
Ing, among other, reasons: (1) That said paper was not to be delivered without
my consent. (2) Said paper was wholly without consideration and inoperative for
any legal purpose. (3) Said paper was signed without legal advice or proper infor-
mation as to the contents or meaning. (4) Said paper was obtained from me in
ignorance of important facts and of my legal rights. (5) Said paper was obtained
under circumstances that make it inequitable that I shall be bound by it. (6)
Said paper was not intended to be used in any manner against my interests or
desire.

"Yours, respectfully, William Means.
"Ashland, Ky., July 28, 1890."

On October 4th following, William Means revoked his revocation of July 28th,
by the following indorsement upon the margin thereof:
"To E. C. Means and Thomas M. Adams, Administrators with the Will Annexed

of Thomas W. Means:
"l'he matter of revocation contained in this notice and paper are hereby revoked.
"October 4, 1890. William Means.
"Attest:

"John F. Hagar."
On the 16th of October, William Means gave the administrators the following

receipt:
"Ashland, Ky., October 16, 1890.

"Received of 1'homas M. Adams and E. C. Means, administrators with the will
annexed of the estate of Thomas W. Means, deceased, the sum of one hundred
and thirty-six thousand and thirty five and seventy-five one-hundredths dollars,
being a part of my distributable share as legatee under said will, applied by them,
as ordered by me, upon the following notes and claims owed by me to the estate of
said decedent, and payable to his order, viz.: [Here follows description of 10 notes,
with balance due on each, aggregating $136,035.75.] This receipt is given in pur-
suance of settlement made October 16, 1890. William Means.
"Attest:

"John F. Hagar.
"A. E. Lampton."

On the same day, the administrators took from William Means a further receipt,
which was dated the 17th, and changed to the 18th, for the sum of $26,240.79,
as a part of his share in the estate, the money to be paid to his brothers and
sisters on account of antecedent debts, if there should be enough left for the
purpose. after paying the above-mentioned 10 notes. It appears that the sisters
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were unwilling to carry out this part o,f the proposed arrangement, and the
receipts were returned to William Means by the administrators sho,rtly afterwards.
On October 23, 1890, William Means received from E. C. Means the notes of
William Means, which had been taken up from the Metropolitan National Bank,
February 15, 1888, amounting to $125,911.74, and received, also, certain coUat-
erals, which had been taken by John Means for his father at the time when he
paid William Means' obligations.
There is evidence tending to show that William Means, at the time when he

signed the instrument of October 16th, was induced to do so by the expectation
that he would in some way get the expected surplus of $26,240.79, which was, at
about the same time, receipted for by him to be paid to his brother and sisters, as
above mentioned; but the evidence does not disclo,se very clearly in what way this
was to be accomplished. The appellants introduced evidence, which, they claim,
tends to show that, some time in February, 1890,William Means, having fallen into
a pecuniary controversy with his wife and children (more particularly his wife), and
being pressed for a settlement upon them, with the intention of satisfying such
claims and reconciling their differences, entered into an agreement whereby he
undertook to assign and transfer to them his expectancy in his father's estate. It
appears, from the proof in the case, that a suit was commenced in the court of
common pleas of Greene county, Ohio (where the wife and children then resided),
by them, against William Means, for the purpose of compelling the specific per-
formance of such an agreement as having been made in 1890. Process was served
upon William Means, but he did not defend the suit. The case was heard upon
the pleadings and proof introduced before the court, and thereupon a decree was
rendered, finding the existence of the agreement above mentioned, and substantial-
ly decreeing a specific performance thereof, and directing the defendant, William
Means, to execute a deed of trust, conveying his expectancy to the present com-
plainants as trustees, "upon the trust that they take possession of all of said
property, and convert it into money, and hold and invest the same upon security
such as is required by a guardian under the laws of Ohio, being hereby vested
with all the authority and powers necessary or appropriate for such purpose, and
that they apply the net increase thereof, and so much of the principal as may be
necessary, to the reasonable support of the family of William Means, including
himself, the plaintiffs, and their said mother: provided that, upon agreement in
writing of all the parties as to distribution of said trust funds, the trustees shall
execute such agreement,"-with other incidental details and directions. And such
a deed was executed by William Means, December 26, 1891.
The answer of the defendants sets up and claims that the sums advanced by

Thomas W. Means to William Means, on and after February 15, 1888, were loans,
and were not included in the scope of the will of Thomas W. Means, whereby
advances of the kind therein described were to be forgiven; that, therefore, the
administrators are entitled to set off the demand of the estate arising thereon
against the legacy directed to be paid to William Means; and, further, that, if this
were doubtful, the questions creating the controversy on this matter have been
settled by and between the administrators and William Means, without notice of
any assignment by him to the complainants, and that, upon such settlement, they
have given up to the said William Means certain valuable securities; and, inci-
dentally, they claim that the alleged agreement fO'r an assignment to the wife and
children, which formed the basis of the judicial proceeding in Greene county, did
not, in fact, exist; and they also insist, on this appeal, that the suit is defective
f()r want of proper parties defendant, it being urged that the other legatees under
the will of Thomas W. Means should have been made parties to the suit.
Upon hearing the case on the pleadings and a voluminous body of proof, the

presiding judge in the court below rendered an opinion, in which he suggested a
difficulty in dealing with the case for the purpose of distribution, arising from the
want of necessary parties to the suit; but, nevertheless, the court proceedell to
discuss and deeide the merits O<f the case, reaching the conclusion that the SUIllil
paid for the benefit of William Means were loans, not intended to be covered by
the bequest in the will, and ho,lding, further, that the question of the validity of
the settlement by William Means with the administrntnrs ought not to be decided
in the present suit, but be postponed until the general settlement of the estate
should be had, with all the necessary parties he-fore the court. 'l'hel'eupon, the
following order was entered: "This cause came on to he heard at this term, and



COWEN V. ADAMS. 543

WIUI argued by couDsel, and thereuIJQn, on consideration thereof, the court flndl
the issue joined against the plaintiffs, and in favor of the defendants, and the
bill is dismissed as against the defendant John Means at the cost of the plaintiffs.
The plaintiffs are given leave, within thirty days, to amend their bill, so as to
make it a bill for the general settlement of the estate of Thomas W. Means;
but such amendment must be upon the basis of the conclusions of the court upon
the issues already joined, as stated in the opinion herewith filed, and, in default
of such amendment, the bill shall stand dismissed, as against all the defendants,
at plaintiffs' CQiltS."
The complainants having declined to amend their bill by bringing in other parties,

a decree absolute was entered on the 31st of .July, 1895, dismissing the bill, with
costs, but without prejudice to the right of the complainants to recover in another
suit the amount of said William Means' legacy, over and beyond the amount of
the receipt of said William Means, for $136,035.75, and without prejudice to any
issues not joined and found against them in this suit. It should further be stated
that the court below held that John Means acted as the agent of his father In
the transactions InvolVed in the controversy, and was, therefore, not liable to
account to the complainants. A.ccordingly, the bill was dismissed, as against him,
unconditionally. The complainants appealed against both parts of the decree,-
that in favor of John Means, as well as that in favor of the administrators; but
they have since dismissed their appeal as against John Means, thus leaving only
the question of the correctness of the decree of the court below in respect to the
principal questions in the case touching the transactions in the furnishing of
money by Thomas W. Means to William Means, and the lIettiement and receipt
between the latter and the adminlstratol'll.
John J. Glidden, John Little, H. P. Whittaker, and Little & Spen-

cer, for appellants.
Lawrence Maxwell, Jr., Julius L. Anderson, and John F. Hager,

for appellees.
Before LURTON, Olrcuit Judge, HAMMOND, J., and SEVER-

ENS, District Judge.

SEVERENS, District Judge, having made the foregoing state-
ment of facts in the case, delivered the opinion of the court.
The first question, in due order, which we are required to de-

cide, is whether the suit is defective for the want of parties in
respect to. the object sought to be attained. The suggestion of
the defendants is that the other legatees than William Means
should have been made defendants. The object of the bill is to
obtain a decree setting aside a receipt given to the administrators
by William Means for the legacy given him by his father's will,
and establishing the right of the complainants to recover the
amount of such legacy. It cannot be doubted that the subjei,;t-
matter of the suit is one of equitable cognizance, and that the bill
was filed in the proper court. Payne v. Hook, 7 Wall. 425; Byers
V. McAuley, 149 U. S. 608, 13 Sup. Ct. 906. The transactions in
which the receipt was obtained were conducted in behalf of the
estate by the administrators, and by them only. They alone rep-
resented the estate, and they are its sufficient representatives in
a suit to set it aside.
In respect to the other bra.nch of the relief sought, attention

must be given to the essential nature of the controversy. It reo
lated substantially to the question whether certain funds which
had been supplied by Thomas W. Means to William Means were
in the nature of a debt to the estate, and so competent to be set
off against his legacy. This is the theory of the counsel who rep-
resent the administrators. and we think it is entirely correct. Ad,.
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ministrators and executors are possessed of the legal title to the
personal property of the estate. If there is a debt, they have a
right to it in their representative capacity. In any controversy
as to whether it is a debt or not, they are the proper litigants, and
the only proper ones on that side of the controversy. They are
trustees of the estate, and whether a certain claim is or is not
parcel thereof is to be determined in a suit in which they stand
for the estate. That there are legatees who are consequentially in-
terested in the result does not make it necessary that they should
be present in the suit, unless in a case where the trustees behave
fraudulently towards them. The beneficiaries may sometimes be
proper parties, but ordinarily, at least, they are not necessary par-
ties. The controversy, as above stated, is the only one which ex-
ists, except that which relates to the receipt. No one questions
the existence of the will, or the right of William Means to the
legacy, and the only question is, as before stated, whether he owes
a debt to the estate which must be set off against it. The ques-
tion in this case is one relating to personal propeI'ty only. The ad-
ministrators have not the title to real estate. That passed directly
to the devisees. The personal property they take from the hand
of the administrators. We think that the administrators were the
competent representatives of the estate, and the only necessary
ones as the controversy now stands. It may be that the court
cannot go so far as to order distribution, but it may go so far as
to determine the right of complainants, and set aside the receipt,
if that should be held proper. This would be no new thing. There
are several cases in the supreme court and circuit court reports,
where that has been the limit of the action of the court. Payne v.
Hook, supra, is one of them, and is familiar. Nor is the bill pre-
mature for such purposes.
In the court below no question was raised as to the necessity of

other parties until the hearing, when it seems to have opcurred to
the court that the suit might, on bringing in the other legatees,
be treated as one for the settlement of the estate and proceed as
such. In his opinion the learned judge held against the complain·
ants on the principal question, "that the balance due by William
.Means to the estate of his father at his death was properly a debt,
and not a gift." The court thereupon caused to be entered an or-
dl'r giving leave to the complainants to amend their bill, so as to
make it a bill for the general settlement of the estate of Thomas
W. Means, Lut that such amendment must be upon the basis of the
cOllelusions of the court upon the issues already joined, as stated
in the opinion of the court, and that, in default of such amend-
ment, the bill be dismissed. The complainants having declined
to amend, the court directed the following decree, which was entered:
"The eomplaiuants having failed and decliued to amend their bill herein, as

permitted by the order entered Mny 25, 1895, or within the extended time allowed
by subsequent orders of this court, it is now adjudg,'d and decreed that their said
bill be, and the same is hereby, dismissed, and the defendants shall recover their
costs herein expended. But this dismissal is without prejudice to the right of
complainants to recover in another suit the amount of one-fifth interest in the
estate of Thomas W. Means, deceased, over and beyond the amount of the receipt
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()t William Means tor $136,035.715, mentioned in said bUl, and wlthont prejudice to
any issues not joined and found against them in this suit."
For the reasons already stated, we think there was no defect

of parties for the principal objects of the bill. And, clearly, at
that late stage of the case, no objection of the kind having been
previously taken, the defendants were not entitled to have the
complainants turned out, if they were entitled to some part of the
relief sought, even if the suit were so constituted that all the
purposes of a bill of wider scope could not be accomplished. Mc-
Gahan v. Bank, 156 U. S. 218, 15 Sup. Ct. 347; Society of Shakers
v. Watson, 15 C. C. A. 632, 68 Fed. 730.
The court below must have thought that the bill was sufficient

for the purposes of deciding that the advances made to William
Means constituted a debt to the estate, for it entered a decree
which was expressly made final on that subject. The court de-
clined to decide whether the receipt in question was valid or not,
leaving that as one which might be tested on the final settlement.
But the bill alleges the title of William Means to the legacy, and,
in effect, the fraudulent procurement of the receipt from him with-
out payment, and with knowledge of the complainants' rights un-
der their assignment from the legatee. The pleadings were under-
stood to involve the validity of the receipt while the parties were
taking the testimony. We cannot doubt that this question was
fairly open for decision, and we conclude that the proper' parties
were before the court for deciding as well the question of the
existence of the claim as a debt as also the question whether the
receipt was a valid recognition of it, and a release thereof.
Counsel for the administrators claim that, if William Means

owed this debt, as one which survived the testator's death, it
was and is proper matter of set-off against his legacy, and we
think this claim well founded; and the proposition has, in this
case, the support of an additional equity arising from the insol-
vency of the legatee. 2 Woerner, Adm'n, § 564; Wat. Set-Off, §§
189, 190; Courtenay v. Williams, 3 Hare, 539; Hodgson v. Fox, 9
Ch. Div. 673; Blackler v. Boott, 114 Mass. 24; Brown's Adm'r v.
Mattingly, 91 Ky. 275, 15 S. W. 353.
Upon the merits, the fundamental question is that which re-

lates to the construction of the will of Thomas W. Means, the
fourth and fifth paragraphs of which are set out in the preceding
statements of facts. Much acute analysis and criticism has been
bestowed by counsel on both sides upon its interpretation, and
various canons of construction invoked. But we think the intention
of the testator is so clearly indicated as scarcely to require the
aid of more than the primary rule that, when the dominating pur-
pose is clearly seen, the language of the will is to be construed, if
possible, in such a way as to give it effect. This is called the "pole
star" in discovering the intention. By the fourth paragraph, the
testator devises and bequeaths all his personal property to his
four living children, and the son of his deceased daughter, share
and share alike. Then, by the fifth, after reciting that he had
already made advances to the legatees, which had been charged

78F.-35
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upon his b'oolrs, lie goes on to say that he desires the eqlla] division
he made in the fourth paragraph "to be a provision for them, re-
spectively, in addition to the advances" already made or which might
there:;liter be made, and that, in the division and distribution of his
estate, the advances which he had made, whether before or after
the making of his will, to any of his children, should "be treated,
not as advancements, but as gifts, not in any manner to be accounted
for by my said children or grandson, or any of them." The lan-
guage could hardly have been made plainer to indiicate that the
leading purpose of the testator was that the property he
should leave at his death, irrespective of what he might have ad-
vanced to them during his life, should be divided among the five
persons named. What they should have received from him, by way
of loan, no longer was to be treated as such, but was to be forgiven.
He uses the word "advances" in the sense of "furnishing," "sup-
plying," in advance of the final distribution of his will. It is absurd
to suppose that he used the word as equivalent to the technical
word "advancements," for, in the face of the disposition to be made
of his property at his death, he must have known that if, in the
meantime, he should bestow property upon them, whether by way
of gift or loan, it would not be an "advancement," as that word is
used in legal phraseology. In the nature of things, it was not
possible for him to have intended by "advances" the same thing as
"advancements," for that involves an intention, at the time of
supplying the money, that it shall be such. Besides, he uses that
term indiscriminately to apply to what he had given and charged
to his children before the making of the will, as to what he might
thereafter charge them. The legacies of the equal provision were
to be "in addition" to such advances, and how could the testata'!.' be
supposed to have used the word "advances" in its technical sense,
which involves a satisfaction or diminution of the legacy pro tanto,
when he expressly declared that the legacies should be in addition
to them? The testator intended that they should not be eaten away
by what he should be moved to do for his children during his life.
The will becomes operative upon the death of the testator. What
this will then meant was this: Whatever the testator has helped
his legatees to before this time, when distribution has finally come,
though then a debt, is now forgiven. It "is not in any manner to
be accounted for." The equal distribution now to be made of what
remains is "in addition to said advances." For the lack of a more
suitable word, we have frequently used this word in this opinion to
express a similar meaning to that for which the testator employed it.
We are not prepared to say that under no circumstances could a

debt from a legatee to the testator be created as an obligation
independent of the absolution accorded by the will. Indeed, we
think otherwise. But we think, also, that, having regard to the
manifest purpose of the testator, when this will was made, to hold
a free hand to help his children during his life as their necessities
might require, and then at the end to divide what remained of his
property equally among them, the court ought to require clear proof
of some distinct purpose, on the part of the testator, during the
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transactions when he furnished the helping means which is sup-
posed to have created the debt, to put that debt outside of the pale
of the forgiveness which he had written in his will. And it must
have been his purpose, and not that of some other. Even an expec-
tation on the part of the legatee that the moneys paid for his benefit
would, in the end, come out of his share of the estate, would not
change the situation, unless the testator himself had a corresponding
intent. He was the master of his fortune, and if he did not lend
his money with the intent that if not repaid in his lifetime it should
be repaid to his executors, then it would fall under the provisions
of this will. There is not to be found in this record any such clear
proof of the purpose of the testator to establish by the furnish-
ing of the financial help, which he did, to his son, an independ-
ent obligation on the son's part which, if not paid during his
life, should not be condoned by the provision in his will. At the
time when he sent John to Cincinnati to aid William in his distress,
the substance of all he said, according to John's account, was to go
and do for William what he thought best. John at that time held
a power of attorney from his father, soone time previously given,
"to receive money, sign checks, notes, drafts, and bills of exchange;
to indorse notes, checks, drafts, and bills of exchange payable
to me or my order; to buy, sell, and transfer notes, bonds, stocks,
bills of exchange, drafts, and checks,-hereby allowing, ratifying,
and confirming whatever said John Means, attorney in fact, for me
and in my name, may do by virtue of this authority." So far as
appears, this, and the direction from his father to do what he thought
best, was all the authority which John had when he went to Cin-
cinnati and paid off William's liabilities to the bank, amounting
to over $125,OOO,-a sum almost as large as the amount covered by
the receipt in question. It does, indeed, appear that, by the father's
acquiescence, upon the suggestion of John, who had the handling
of his father's books, the account of these transactions was entered
in a distinct place in these books, and they were kept separate from
the former accounts with William. But there is not much, if
anything, in all this, or in anything else disclosed by the testimony,
to prove that T'homas W. Means had a purpose to banish William
Means from his favor, or isolate him from the benefits of the plan
of distribution of his property after death which had become the
settled purpose of his life. It was immaterial to that purpose in
what book or how the account was kept. Whenever and however

• kept, the charge would fall under the provision of exclusion by the
will in the end, and the details of the bookkeeping he may well be
deemed to have left to John, who had all such matters in charge.
He had himself become blind, and incapable of supervising his books
in person, and, as he confided in John, there was no reason for his
going over them with the help of even if we assume that
there was something on their face which disclosed this extraordi-
nary purPose, which, indeed, we think is contrary to the fact.
John's attention, when he testified in the case, was repeatedly drawn
to his interview with his father about helping William, and the mode
of keeping the books, but he continued to say that substantially all
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his father said was to do as he (John) thought best in respect to
both those matters. In reply to this question of his counsel, "State
what, if anything, you said to your father with reference to taking
a note from William Means for the amounts that he obtained after
the failure of the bank in preference to a receipt," he said, "I gave
as a reason to him that a receipt or charge on his books, simply,
would not have the same effect, in law, that a note showing indebt-
edness to him would; that my understanding of his will, as he had
made it, as he understood it, that it was better to take note than
have an account or receipt,-to take a note showing evidence of
indebtedness, and the collaterals received or redeemed from the
bank on sale to be applied as credit on the note, keeping it as an
indebtedness, in the shape to indicate and show an indebtedness."
To the further question, "State what answer, if any, he made," he
replied, "He t'Old me to do as I thought was the best way to do,-
to do as I thought best." As the father undoubtedly intended to
keep it as an indebtedness, John's statement to him imported nothing
more than the mere question as to the best mode of doing the busi-
ness "in the shape to indicate and show an indebtedness," and there
is nothing in the very full detail of testimony given by John to
show that on· any occasion the idea of establishing an indebtedness
beyond the scope of the will was ever broached to his father, or
that anything ever fell from him to show that such an idea had
occurred to him. There was no suggestion by John to \Yilliam,
at the time when he came to his relief, that anybody expected that
the money which· was being supplied to him by his father was to
be put beyond the operation of the will, or would stand on any
special footing in that regard. On the other hand, we think the
moral probabilities are all against the appellees' contention. 'l'hom-
as W. Means was a man of strong character and fixed adherence to
his plans in life. He was also a man of strong paternal affections,
and had been accustomed to extend his assistance and support to
all his children bj' employing his large means on every occasion of
their need. It is incredible that he should have changed his atti-
tude when William's calamities came upon him. The latter had
gained considerable distinction in life, and no doubt he felt sensible
of the credit to the family which his son's attainments reflected.
He was the character of man who would be likely to have taken
pride in them. He did not then know what, if any, moral delin-
quency there was in William's transactions. He knew that his son
was in financial distress, and he came forward as was his wont, to
help him out and re-establish him on solid ground. We are fully'
persuaded that we do him exact justice in refusing to believe that
he then had a thought of inaugurating a new plan of dealing with
William's expectancy. And if he did not then have such purpose,
there is nothing in the evidence which would justify the belief that
he at any time afterwards formed one.
There is much testimony going to prove the vigorous and per-

sistent efforts of others interested in the estate to impress upon
those transactions the character which their interests inclined
them to think would be just. We greatly doubt whether John
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Means had at any time any desire or intention to treat the advan-
ces made for William as excluding him from his share in his father's
estate. It appears, and much stress is laid upon this by the ap-
pellees, that William gave his notes for the sum paid out for
him, and towards the last appended to them a sorl d pledge of or
charge upon his expectancy. The giving of the notes would not,
of itself, alter the character of the advances. There is no doubt
that Thomas W. Means was accustomed to enter his charges in
his books as denoting an indebtedness from his children to him-
self, or that he intended to continue that practice, and to hold
them as debtors. The will signifies as much, when read in con-
nection with his books, to which it refers; and, if his advances had
meant gifts, the provision about them would have been super-
fluous, for a gift is neither an advancement nor a loan. If they
were intended as loans for the time being, as no doubt they were,
there was nothing out of the way in taking notes for them. But
in the original and main transaction even tbis was not done. The
subsequently taking a note was evidently an afterthought, and
we think the probabilities are very strong that the taking of the
note was not with any view to confirm, as against William, the
idea that he wa;s creating a debt to his father of any extraordinary
character. There are many letters in evidence which passed be-
tween John and William during the time that these transactions
were going forward. They are too many to transcribe here. We
shall state the substance of them. On John's part they are full
of manly tenderness and sympathy. He speaks in them of taking
notes, but there is no intimation that they were to be taken for
the purpos'e for which they are now sought to be used, and so
of the pledges attached to some of the later notes. They signify,
on the contrary, that the object was to put up a bulwark against
the attacks of creditors, and to shield the collaterals which John
had taken from 'William's creditors on paying them his debts, and
probably, also, the legacy of William, for the father was old, and,
as John's letters show, was not expected to survive for more than
a short time. After John had returned home from Cincinnati on
the occasion when he paid out $125,911.74, he wrote William, stat-
ing the sum he had paid, and said, "I think you had better send
me a note at one day in father's favor for the amount," and that he
had had a talk with a lawyer on his way up, ,"ho agl'eed with him
that that was best, to close the matter up at present. This was
the 16th of February. On the 20th of February, he wrote William
again, saying:
"Herewith find forms which explain themselves. Please copy. sign. and re-

turn to me at your earliest convenience. * * * I also think it best for you to
have as herewith indicated, fearing suits will be brought against you and other
directors which may give you trouble as it now stands."

One of these forms was that of the note for $125,911.74. To
this William, on the 21st, replied:
"Yours of the 20th received, and I send you by this mail my note to Thomas

·W. Means, or order, for $125,911.74; receipts for $700, $1,200, and $1,000,
February 10th, 11th, and 18th, respectively; and authNity to dispose of seeu-



550 78 FEDERAL REPORTER.

rities,-all as requested by you. I fully agree with your action in the prem-
ises as the best preparation for the civil suits which are likely to follow."

On the 23d John again wrote to William, saying:
"My Dear Will: Yonrs of the 21st inst., note and authority to sell securities,

came to hand last evening. Am sorry that my reference to father's sight caused
you trouble. He keeps cheerful and contented, walks out every day if good
weather, some one taking his hand as he walks. Have explained to him my
action in yonr affairs, amounts paid, how obtained, the advantage of saving
securities pledged from being sacrificed, etc. He understands all, but soon
forgets details, so that have to explain again when next I see him, and always
ends by telling me to do as I think best for you."

In this correspondence, John's purpose in taking the note and
authority to dispose of the collaterals is somewhat (though not
very) obscurely stated, but it is not difficult to understand what
he meant, or how William understood it. It is contended that this
was a dishonest and illegal purpose, and that William should be
precluded from setting up the invalidity of the notes. But the
suggestion of taking them came from John. The correspondence
between him and 'William, above referred to, shows that William
was in great trouble and distress. He was agitated by the sense
of his financial disaster, his becoming discredited as a man, and
the fear of impending criminal prosecution. He confessed to John
his unfitness for doing business, and he therefore turned over to
him the charge and management of. affairs. This correspondence,
as well as the other eVidence, all concur in showing that William
yielded to John's suggestions, and followed them without question.
.Tohn stood in the relation of a fiduciary toward his brother. In
such circumstances it would be a strange perversion of the doc-
trine of estoppel to hold that William should be the party who is
estopped. Such facts would indicate the propriety of holding the
administrators to be estopped from setting up the products of
John's unlawful proceedings, assuming they are such, as a bar to
William's claim. The administrators do not represent any person
who could have been defrauded, and it does not appear how these
administrators of Thomas W. Means can assert any rights which
belong to creditors, unless they are themselves such. We are con-
vinced that the notes and instruments charging the legacy were
intended to be operative only in case the creditors should proceed
against the collaterals or for the purpose of subjecting William's
legacy to the payment of their debts.
It is contended, on the part of the administrators, that it is

not competent to controvert, by parol testimony, the plain terms
of a written instrument, and this is undoubtedly a well-settled
rule; but it does not apply to an instrument which has been given
with the intention of both the parties thereto that it should become
operative only upon some condition. 2 Whart. Ev. § 927; Burke v.
Dulaney, 153 U. S. 228, 14 Sup. Ct. 816. In the case cited, the rule
was stated and applied in an opinion delivered by Mr. Jnstice Har-
lan, in which he cited and discussed a large number of authori-
ties illustrating the subject. Ware v. Allen, 128 U. S. 590, 9 Sup.
Ct. 174; Pym v. Campbell, 6 El. & Bl. 370, 373; Davis v. Jones,
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17 C. B. 625; Wallis v. Littell, 11 C. B. (N. S.) 369; Wilson v.
Powers, 131 Mass. 539; Pawling v. U. S., 4 Cranch, 219. Besides
this, when we consider the relations of the parties, it could not be
permitted that the administrators should avail themselves of in-
struments, procured by John Means for the professed purpose of
benefiting William, as a means, by converting it to another pur-
pose, of cutting him off' from his legacy. We cannot, therefore,
hesitate in reaching the conclusion that there was no intention on
the part of the testator, in making the advances to William on
February 15, 1888, and subsequently, to create an obligation on
William's part which would not be forgiven by his will. Whether
John Means conceived such an idea, at a late stage in the transac-
tion, we are not sure, and it is not necessary to decide. It is prob-
able that William anticipated that some such fate might befall
him. After his downfall, he seems to have been unsteady in his
course, sometimes inclining strongly to his father's family, and
seeming to be anxious to secure their affection and favor, and will-
ing to do as they wished to that end. At other times he turned
to consider the welfare of his own family, and his own obligations
towards its members.
Having reached the conclusion that the debts incurred by Wil-

liam Means to his father were extinguished by the will, and that
the administrators had no just foundation for claiming William's
debts as a set-off against his legacy, it remains for us to consider
whether what has been done between the administrators and Wil-
liam should be treated as a satisfaction of it. The defendants
have exhibited extraordinary diligence in obtaining from William
repeated renunciation of his claims. Some days before the tes-
tator's death, they obtained one such, and then, upon the day of
their appointment, they solemnly indorsed upon the instrument
their acceptance of the same as administrators, notwithstanding
he had in the meantime revoked it; and on later occasions they
obtained like concessions, culminating in the receipt and order of
October 16, 1890, now in controversy. Such activity on the part
of an administrator executing a will, in procuring the surrender
of one who, by its terms, is a legatee, excites suspicion that they
were conscious of standing on dubious ground, and ill comports
with the duties of one standing in the place of a trustee for all
the parties in interest. It is a violation of his duty when an exec-
utor becomes a partisan for one legatee and sacrifices the other.
The law will not permit any unfairness on his part, or sanction a
proceeding whereby the legatee is induced by his trustee to give
up valuable rights without any, or a wholly inadequate, considera-
tion. Here there was no consideration for the abandonment of
his legacy by William Means to the administrators. It is con-
tended by the appellees that the collaterals given up were valuable,
and that William could not retain them and repudiate his receipt.
Nearly all of them had been realized upon during the father's life,
and the proceeds credited to William. A small part of them only
were left. The collaterals which they surrendered to him had be·
come hi& own property, when the debts which they secured had
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been extinguished by the will. While the father was alive, he was
a creditor of William in respect of the moneys loaned to him, and
undoubtedly he had the right to enforce the collaterals, and there·
by sl!tisfy or reduce William's debt; but the situation was changed
at his death. Then the will came into effect, and, the debt itself
being discharged thereby, the purposes of the security ended by
inevitable consequence. These collaterals had all the while re-
mained in John's hands, and were obtained from him by one of
the administrators, to turn over to William, whose receipt states
that they were "received of E. C. Means (from John Means)." These
callaterals the administrators claimed as property which they held
in pledge for the debt which they asserted in favor of the estate
against William. William had lost all his property, and was in
very straitened circumstances. Since his downfall, he has been
broken in spirit and wavering in his purposes. He seems at times
to have been impressed that the administrators had a moral, if
not a legal, claim upon him that he should yield up his legacy to
the estate, and this claim was pressed and insisted upon by the
administrators. That they had no such legal claim upon him we
have already determined. His brother and sisters all being in
affluent circumstances, and his own family in needy circumstances,
that he should have voluntarily given up the whole of this large
sum, with no mistake in regard to what his legal rights were, it is
difficult to believe. It amounted simply to a gift to the admin-
istrators for the benefit of the other legatees, whose only claim
rested on the bounty of the testator. Courts of equity view such
transactions with distrust, and, if the circumstances indicate that
the trustee has dealt with the beneficiary unjustly, will not hesi-
tate to set them aside. The absence of any adequate considera-
tion in itself raises a presumption of unfairness, which the trustee
is bound to repel. Equity will relieve the legatee in such transac-
tions, where he has, under a misapprehension of his legal rights,
surrendered to the trustee valuable interests without any ade-
quate consideration, especially where the situation is such that
no harm will come to the interests of others. Such would be the
case where the claim relates to a fund which has not yet passed
beyond control. These propositions are amply sustained by au-
thority. 1 Story, Eq. JUl'. §§ 307, 308; 2 Pom. Eq. JUl'. §§ 948, 951,
955, 956, 958, 1088; Taylor v. Taylor, 8 How. 183; Comstock v.
Herron, 6 U. S. App. 629, 5 C. C. A. 266, and 55 Fed. 803, and the
cases there cited; v. Drewitt, 20 Beav. 632; In re Ashwell's
Will, Johns. Eng. eh. 122; Snow v. Booth, 2 Kay & J. 132; Oil
Co. v. Hawkins, 20 C. C. A. 468, 74 Fed. 395. "It is not," says Mr.
Justice Story, "upon the feelings which a delicate and.
honorable man must experience, nor upon any notion of discretion,
to permit a voluntary gift or other act of a man, whereby he strips
himself of his property, that courts of equity have deemed them·
selves at liberty to interpose in cases of this sort." They "will
not, therefore, arrest or set aside au act or contract merely because
a man of more honor would not have entered into it. There must
be some relations between the parties which compel the one to
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make a full discovery to the other or to abstain from all selfish
projects. But when such a relation does exist, courts of equity,
acting upon this superinduced ground, in aid of general morals,
will not suffer one party, standing in a situation of which he can
avail himself against the other, to derive advantage from that cir-
cumstance, for it is founded in a breach of confidence." It makes
no difference that the other legatees would ultimately obtain the
benefit of the wrong. However innocent of it they may be, it
would come tainted to their hands. Even gifts between persons
who stand in no confidential relation to each other are watched
with jealousy. 2 White & T. Lead. Cas. Eq. 582; Cooke v. Lamotte,
15 Beav. 234. Where the transfer is of a large sum, and constitutes
the whole of the property of the party making it, himself having
obligations to those in need, to one standing in no need, it raises
an almost insurmountable presumption that there has either been
some untoward infiuence or gross misconception on the part of the
party making it of his rights and obligations. It is possible that
the administrators were actuated by a purpose to get William's
share out of the way of creditors, thinking the other legatees were
more justly entitled to it; but they do not charge themselves with
any Buch purpose, and We shall not impute it to them. We are,
therefore, of the opinion that the transactions which took place
between the administrators and William Means, among them that
of taking the receipt of October 16, 1890, ought not to be allowed
to bar the enforcement of the payment of the legacy.
In view of the conclusions which we have reached in respect

to the title of William Means to the legacy in question, it is not
necessary for us to decide whether, as against the administrators,
there is any sufficient proof of the existence of the agreement
between William Means and the members of his family which is
said to have been made in February, 1890. The trust deed ex-
ecuted by him on December 26, 1891, conveyed his interest to the
present complainants as trustees. As between \Villiam Means
and the complainants in the Greene county court of common pleas,
there having been due service of the process upon him, the decree
therein rendered, and the trust deed, were effective in transferring
the title, and estop him from denying that it was in fact transferred.
It is no concern of the administrators whether they are required
to pay the legacy to the legatee, or to his assignee; nor can they
require that the rights of William Means' creditors should be liti-
gated in this suit. 1.'hey are not parties, and that subject could
only be considered in independent litigation. Akin to that mat-
ter is the question presented in regard to the complainants' trust
being in part for the benefit of the grantor in the deed. Whether,
as to creditors, that part of the trust would be obnoxious to their
attack, we do not. for the reasons above stated, think it is neces-
sary or proper to decide.
'.rhe result is that the decree of the court below must be re-

versed,' and the canse remanded, with directions to enter a decree
for the complainants setting aside the receipt of October 16, 1890,
tlnd directing an account to be taken for the purpose of ascertain-
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ing the: amount due in respect of the legacy of William Means, and
that thereupon the complainants m'e entitled to recover the same.
The complainants will recover costs in this court and in the court
below, to be paid by the administrators from the funcls of the estate.

HAZZARD v. FITZHUGH et aLl

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. December 8, 1896.)

No. 490.
MOHTGAGE OF HOMESTEAD-COLORABLE FOR Pos-

SESSION-Bn.T. TO ENJOIN-INNocEN'r PUI<C,HASEH.
A husband and wife, colorably and for the purpose of borrowing money

thereon, conveyed, by deed absolute, their homestead to a third person, for
a recited consideration, part in cash and part in a purchase-money note; at
the same time making affidavit that the sale was bona fide. No cash passed;
but the note, by previous arrangement, was taken by a mortgage company,
which paid the amount to be loaned directly to the husband, the grantee of the
land giving it a deed of trust to secure the same. The note, guarantied by
the mortgage company, was oold by it to defendant, an innocent purchaser
for value, without notice, who, after maturity of the note, caused the property
to be sold under the trust deed, and bought it. in for less than the sum due.
Defendant then brought an action at law to recover possession of the land
from the husband and wife, who had remained in possession, whereupon they
filed this bill in equity to enjoin the prosecution of such action. Held, that
the injunction must be denied, the case being ruled by the equitable principles
that between equal equities the law wiII prevail, and that the equity of a per-
oon misled is superior to that of the person misleading.

Appeal from the Circuit Oourt of the United States ,for the North-
ern District of Texas.
This was a suit in equity by Mrs. A. E. Fitzhugh and her hus-

band, L. H. Fitzhugh, against Mrs. Fisher Hazzard, to enjoin the
latter from prosecuting an action of ejectment; complainants
claiming to be the equitable owners of the land in controversy, as
their homestead. The title sued upon in the ejectment suit by the
defendant herein was a title acquired by purchase upon the fore-
closure of the trust deed mentioned in the opinion of the circuit
court, which is set out below. The defendant filed an answer un·
der oath, and also a cross bill, praying affirmative relief. The cir-
cuit court entered a decree dismissing the cross bill, canceling the
alleged lien of the defendant and all her munimoots of title, and
perpetually enjoining her from setting up any claim to the prem-
ises, or further prosecuting her action of ejectment.
The circuit court (McOormick, Circuit Judge) delivered an opin·

ion, which is here set out in full:
All of the chief actors in the transaction out of which this suit grew are per-

sons of high respectability and superior intelligence. They have all testified by
deposition in this case, and I find no substantial conflict in their testimony.
I have examined fully and carefully all of the evidence, and find that the com-
plainants, L. H. Fitzhugh and A. E. Fitzhugh, were married in December, 1851,
and from that time have lived together as husband and wife..In 1886 they ac-
quired the land in controversy, and from that year have continued to occupy and

1 Rehearing denied January 26, 1897.


